
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

7 September 2018 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 
Monday, 17th September, 2018 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Jonathan Noble 
Vice Chairman: Councillor James Edwards 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Michael Brookes, Colin Brotherton, 

Paul Gleeson, Dr Gordon Gregory, Barrie Pierpoint, 
Felicity Ransome and Mr Alan Pickering 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 23rd July 2018. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   INTRODUCTION TO NEW EXTERNAL AUDITOR - MAZARS  
 

 (Mark Surridge, Mazars’ Audit Director, will be attending) 
 

2   QUARTER 1 RISK REPORT (Pages 7 - 20) 
 

 (A report presented by Suzanne Rolfe, Transformation & Governance Manager) 
 

3   PROPERTY FUND UPDATE (Pages 21 - 24) 
 

 (A report presented by Colin Wyatt, Accountancy Manager - Treasury & Capital) 
 

4   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 25 - 36) 
 

 (A report presented by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager) 
 

5   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 37 - 38) 
 

 (For Members to consider the Committee’s work programme.) 
 
 

This meeting will be sound recorded 
 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227    email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify 01205 314227    
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 

Emergency Procedures 
 

In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 
via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 

located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

23 July 2018 

Present: Councillor Jonathan Noble (Chairman), Councillor James Edwards (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Michael Brookes, Colin Brotherton, Paul Gleeson, 
Dr Gordon Gregory, Barrie Pierpoint, Sue Ransome and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
Officers –  
Chief Finance Officer, Director (KPMG), Head of Internal Audit (City of Lincoln Council), 
Principal Auditor (City of Lincoln Council) and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
In attendance: Accountancy Manager - Treasury & Capital and Accountancy Manager - 
Revenues & Systems  
 
11   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the Committee’s last meeting, held on 30th May 2018, were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
12   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillor Felicity Ransome; Councillor Sue 
Ransome was attending as her substitute. 
 
13   REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (ISA 260) 2017/18 

 
The KPMG Director presented the External Audit ISA 260 Report for 2017/18, which set 
out KPMG’s key findings in relation to their external audit of the Council.  Subject to all 
outstanding queries being resolved to their satisfaction, KPMG anticipated issuing an 
unqualified audit opinion on the Council’s financial statements before the 31st July 
deadline.   
 
The KPMG Director went through the summary of the key findings, covering the controls 
over key financial systems and the IT control environment; accounts production; the 
opinion on the financial statements; completion of the audit; value for money 
arrangements; and exercising of audit powers; and acknowledgments. 
 
The report highlighted an exception in relation to controls with respect to general IT 
controls in that authorisation of starters and leavers on the Academy System were not 
evidenced or documented and it was recommended that this area be strengthened.  
This recommendation had been raised in the ISA 260 for 2016/17.   
 
KPMG had received a complete set of accounts for audit on 22nd May 2018, well in 
advance of the statutory deadline of 31st May, and the Council had provided good-
quality working papers. 
 
Two significant risks, excluding those mandated by International Standards on Auditing, 
had been identified previously: Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), in 
particular land and buildings not valued for a considerable time, and the valuation of the 
Pensions Liabilities, for which the issue was the reliance on a third party for information 
for the accounts.  KPMG had carried out a significant amount of work in these two areas 
and found no issues to raise; the risks with respect to both had been mitigated.    

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Audit & Governance Committee 
23 July 2018 
 

The audit had not identified any material adjustments.  There were a small number of 
minor presentational matters, which officers had agreed to amend and these did not 
impact on the pre-audit outturn reported in May.   
 
The audit of the financial statements was substantially complete subject to specific 
areas set out in the report.  It was proposed that an unqualified opinion would be issued.  
Before issuing the opinion, a signed management representation letter was required.  It 
was anticipated that the completion certificate and Annual Audit Letter would be issued 
in September 2018.   
 
With respect to value for money arrangements, KPMG had concluded that the Council 
had made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources and, therefore, anticipated issuing an unqualified value for money 
opinion.  This was a positive outcome.  It was stressed that the audit did not relate to 
delivery of value for money per se; it was an assessment of the processes and 
arrangements in place to secure it. 
 
One significant value for money risk had been identified, Financial Resilience, relating to 
the Council’s ability to deliver its Medium Term Financial Plan.  KPMG’s overall view 
was that the Council was well placed to do so as the arrangements, processes and 
systems underpinning it were fit for purpose.  However, this did not mean delivering the 
plan would be easy, as the Council would still face challenges and difficult decisions. 
 
In conclusion, the KPMG Director thanked the Chief Finance Officer, Accountancy 
Manager - Treasury & Capital and the rest of the Council’s finance team for their help in 
supporting the delivery of the audit. 
 
In response to questions, the Chief Finance Officer explained that the value for money 
assessment was made against the assumptions underpinning the financial statements 
and its links to other plans.  It related to the arrangements for monitoring implementation 
of plans; it did not go into the level of detail of examining the goods and services 
obtained. 
 
In response to comments regarding authorisation of starters and leavers on the 
Academy System, the Chief Finance Officer stressed that audit recommendations were 
taken seriously.  This was an administrative process within the system’s processes; 
authorisation had been put in place following the previous year’s audit; and the 
recommendation from the current audit KPMG related purely to the supporting evidence 
required, which had now been put in place.   
 
A question raised by the Chairman prior to the meeting related to whether it would be 
prudent to set aside a reserve for future Business Rate Appeals relating to the 2017 
Valuation.  It had been confirmed that there was a provision in place, and KPMG 
considered that the Council had taken a cautious approach in setting its level; however, 
they believed that a reserve rather than a provision would be more appropriate, whilst 
recognising that the Council’s treatment of setting up a provision was in accordance with 
the relevant International Accounting Standard.   
 
In response to a request for clarification, the KPMG Director explained a provision would 
be appropriate if an individual business had made an appeal against their rating and the 
Council could reasonably assume what the amount of a payment would be, but did not 

Page 2



Audit & Governance Committee 
23 July 2018 

 

yet know whether the appeal would be successful.  However, in this instance, the 
Council was providing an amount for Business Rates appeals, but the Council did not 
know whether appeals would be made.  From the audit perspective, the Council had not 
met the criteria for establishing a provision; if the Council wished to set money aside to 
cover for that eventuality, KPMG’s view was that the Council would be better to create a 
reserve.  The final outcome would be the same, but the Council did not have the 
certainty to create a provision; it was a technical accounting point. 
 
The KPMG Director confirmed that his view was that the Council had adequate risk 
management structures in place.   
 

RESOLVED: That a vote of thanks to KPMG be recorded for the work carried out 
by the team for the Council over the years. 

 
14   AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 2017/18 

 
The Chief Finance Officer presented a report regarding the outcome of the audit of the 
Financial Report 2017/18 by the Council’s current appointed external auditor, KPMG, 
seeking formal approval prior to its publication.   
 
The audited Financial Report was attached as Appendix A.  In addition to the Statement 
of Accounts, the Financial Report also included the Narrative Statement, Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) and Independent Auditor’s Report, but these were not 
considered to be part of the Statement of Accounts that had now been formally audited.  
The Committee had just received KPMG’s International Auditing Standards (ISA) 260 
report on their audit findings.   
 
The Council had a statutory requirement for the Statement of Accounts to be approved 
prior to the annual deadline of 31 July, and the audit opinion issued.  Once the Accounts 
had been approved, the Management Letter of Representation signed, and the auditor’s 
opinion issued, the Financial Report would be published on the Council’s website.   
 
This year’s Accounts audit process, the final to be undertaken by KPMG as the 
Council’s appointed external auditor, had progressed smoothly.  A very small number of 
minor presentational amendments and changes had been identified and agreed, and 
had been included in the audited Accounts.  There were no changes to the end of year 
balances reported in May.  The auditor had made one recommendation in respect of 
administrative procedures for the Academy system, which officers had considered and 
had put processes in place to address this. 
 
The auditors also planned to issue an unqualified opinion on the arrangements that the 
Council had in place to secure value for money. 
 
It was pleasing that the auditors had commented positively upon the processes that the 
Council had in place to support the preparation of the statutory Statement of Accounts 
(previous Minute refers) and that only a small number of minor presentational changes 
had had to be made.   
 

Page 3



Audit & Governance Committee 
23 July 2018 
 

The Chief Finance Officer concluded by thanking the Accountancy Manager - Treasury 
& Capital and the finance team for their hard work and diligence in preparing the 
accounts and supporting the auditors. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer also thanked the KPMG Director and his team for the way 
they had conducted the audit.  KPMG’s relationship with the Council’s officers had been 
challenging, constructive and positive and it was hoped that a similar relationship would 
be built with the new appointed auditor, Mazars LLP, with whom work would commence 
shortly.  Mazars’ representative would be introduced to the Committee at a future 
meeting.  
 
Responding to Members’ questions, the Chief Finance Officer offered clarification of the 
information set out in the remuneration table.  All the officers referred to in the table 
were Council employees; there were a small number of other officers engaged on 
interim arrangements pending recruitment.    
 
The Collection Fund was the Council’s statement as agent for the collection of council 
tax and, more recently, business rates, as the collection and billing authority before they 
were passed to the Government and major preceptors.  The General Fund contained 
the Council’s spending and income relating to its services. 
 
The issue of the decrease in recycling was raised and it was pointed out that this was 
being scrutinised by the Environment and Performance Committee.   
 
The Chairman referred to a question he had raised prior to the meeting with respect to 
proceeds from short term and long term investments between 2016/17 and 2017/18.  
The Chief Finance Officer had explained that the movement was £3.777m and was the 
difference between the total net cash flow of the positive figure of £2.693m in 2016/17 
and the negative figure of £1.084m in 2017/18. 
 

RESOLVED: That the audited Financial Report 2017/18 be approved and thanks be 
passed to the finance team and the auditors for their hard work and quality of 
documentation. 

 
15   TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE - QUARTER 1 2018/19 

 
The Chief Finance Officer presented the regular quarterly update, which set out the 
Treasury Management activities of the Council for the first quarter of 2018/19, 1 April to 
30 June 2018. 
 
In terms of investment returns the Council was expecting to achieve the budget estimate 
of £117,000 in 2018/19.  The Council was generally keeping investments short term, 
although it had invested some monies in longer term property funds as approved in the 
2016/17 Treasury Management Strategy.  As the financial climate changed, who the 
Council invested with, and the amount invested, was under constant scrutiny, taking into 
account risk at any particular moment in time.  There was ongoing preparatory work to 
progress the £20m borrowing and information on the Capital and Treasury Strategy 
would be included in the next quarterly treasury management update.   
 

Page 4



Audit & Governance Committee 
23 July 2018 

 

In response to questions, it was explained that the Capita colour rating of different 
institutions indicated the treasury advisors’ confidence in those institutions in terms of 
duration of investment at that time.   
 
With respect to investment in property funds, investment had not been arranged with 
Hermes as the company had not had funds available at the time the funds were placed; 
therefore, the sum invested with one of the other companies had been doubled.  Also, 
with respect to the forthcoming process for placing £20m funds, Hermes was classified 
as a revenue fund and, as the Council was undertaking a capital process, the company 
was ineligible.   
 
There had been an initial meeting with the property fund companies with respect to the 
placing of funds and there had also been a significant amount of communication by way 
of e-mails and conference calls.  East Lindsey District Council was also investing with 
the companies.  It was unlikely that they would meet again prior to placement, but 
regular liaison would continue. 
 
The report referred to uncertainties in relation to the interest rate forecast; however, the 
purpose of the report was to look back over the previous quarter.   
  
 
16   INTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT 2018/19 

 
The Internal Audit Manager presented a report, which detailed progress with Internal 
Audit work on the 2018/19 audit plan. 
 
Work was progressing well with 15% of the plan delivered compared to the target of 
16%.  One audit had been completed, Elections & Electoral Registration and one was 
being finalised, Payroll Key Controls, both of which had been given High Assurance.  
Other audits were in the process of being prepared.  Details of the audits in the plan 
were set out in Appendix 2. 
 
The scope for work requested by management on Car Parking had been agreed with 
the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Place and Space. It would be a combination 
of a review of the income controls and an assessment of possible value for money 
opportunities.  To accommodate this work, it had been agreed that the Boston Town 
Area Committee (BTAC) audit would be moved to 2019/20.  Two other audits were 
being prepared: Environmental Enforcement and Business Continuity & Emergency 
Planning. 
 
CIPFA had recently refreshed its practical guidance for Audit Committees and a report on 
this would be presented to the Committee at a future meeting once it had been discussed 
with the S151 Officer.  
 
During debate, it was commented that the Audit Forum meetings had been excellent, 
but had not been well attended by Members of the Committee.   
 
Referring to the Elections & Electoral Registration audit, a question was raised as to 
whether work had been undertaken with respect to the possible misuse of postal voting.  
The Internal Audit Manager confirmed that the audit had included a review of the 
Council’s management of postal and proxy votes in the light of issues faced by voters in 

Page 5



Audit & Governance Committee 
23 July 2018 
 

Newcastle under Lyme; they had not identified any issues of concern and had been 
satisfied that the Council’s processes and procedures mitigated the risk of similar issues 
occurring locally.   
 

Action: JS/PJ 
E-mail Members with the detail of the audit work undertaken with respect to the 
management of postal voting covered by the Elections and Electoral Registration audit. 

 
BTAC had not previously been audited and had been added to the audit plan due to its 
increased level of funds, to ensure it had appropriate governance arrangements in 
place.  The audit had to be put back due to the limit of Internal Audit resources.  
However, the Chief Finance Officer confirmed that, as BTAC was not a separate entity 
from the Council and was subject to the same operational controls, the audit was not 
pressing.   
 
17   LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

 
Members considered whether they had any training needs. 
 
Two Members new to the Committee pointed out that they had not received any training.  
It was noted that they were both experienced Members and they could undertake the 
CIPFA online training course, though some Members felt that online training was not as 
effective as that delivered by a trainer. 
 
Members were asked to consider whether there was any specific training they felt 
should be included in Induction Training for any Members elected in May 2019, as they 
would certainly undertake training before the Committee’s first meeting of 2019/20.  A 
suggestion put forward was to repeat the session on the accounts delivered by the 
previous Section 151 Officer. 
 
It was further suggested that current Members would gain insights from discussions with 
the auditors and the Internal Audit Manager confirmed that they could hold audit 
effectiveness training with Members. 
 

Action: JC/JS 
Arrange for Committee Members to meet with the Internal Auditors prior to the next 
meeting. 

 
18   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Committee noted the work programme and Members were urged to contact the 
clerk if they had any new items for a future agenda.  In response to a request for an 
update report on the Council’s property fund investments, the Chief Finance Officer 
explained that the information to be reported to the next meeting in September would be 
a list of investments and where they had been invested.  There would be a future 
agenda item as a result of the changes to the Audit Committee guidelines. 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 6.30 pm 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 

SUBJECT: QUARTER 1 RISK REPORT 

REPORT AUTHOR: HEAD OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 

 

Update on risks in Quarter 1 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Committee comment on the Q1 risk information if required 

 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

The Audit & Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective 
development and operation of risk management in the Council according to its terms of 
reference 

 

 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

 

Alternative reporting arrangements 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 

 

REPORT 

 
1. Update on risks in Quarter 1 

1.1 Each quarter we monitor our strategic risks – those risks which could impact most 
on the achievement of our corporate priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan 
(www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan) – Prosperity; People; Place; Public Service. 

 
1.2 There are no new strategic risks to report in Quarter 1. 
 
1.3 Corporate Management Team (CMT) have completed their in-depth review of the 

strategic risks. The outcome for each risk is set out in Appendix A. 
 
1.4 Summary of strategic risks (full details in Appendix A) 

 

Corporate 
Priority 

Risk name Risk owner Risk score Risk rating 
Management 

assurance 
(RAG) 

1: Prosperity 

Flood risk 
Michelle 
Sacks 

8 Medium Amber 

Growth and 
local economy 

Michelle 
Sacks 

9 Medium Green 

Local Plan 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Amber 

2: People 

Housing Andy Fisher 12 High Red 

Welfare Paul Julian 4 Medium Green 

Health Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

3: Place Town Centre Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

4: Public 
Service 

Population 
change 

Andy Fisher 9 Medium Green 

Budget Paul Julian 12 High Amber 

Capacity 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

Transformation 
Programme 

Paul Julian 9 Medium Amber 

Brexit Paul Julian 9 Medium Green 

Overall 

Civil 
contingency 
risks 

Andy Fisher 8 Medium Green 

Compliance 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Green 

Reputation 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Strategic and operational risks continue to be managed in accordance with the Risk 
Management Framework. 
 

Page 8

http://www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan


 

 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications specific to this report. 
 

 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Local Government Act 1999 

 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
CONSULTATION 

 

Consultation has been undertaken with CMT and performance clinic (senior officers and 
portfolio holders). 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 
 

Risk Q1 2018/19 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Flood risk 

The risk of 
flooding may 
adversely 
impact on the 
Council's 
ability to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Strategic Flood 
Risk 
Assessment; 
Lincolnshire 
Flood Risk 
Strategy; 
working closely 
with the 
Environment 
Agency; joint 
working with 
LCC and South 
Holland on the 
Local Plan; 
plans for the 
Boston Barrier 
(which will 
reduce risk of 
tidal flooding 
from 2% to 
0.3%); 
Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
manage flood 
risk and its 
impact; deliver 
the Local Plan; 
the risk score 
will only 
reduce when 
the Boston 
Barrier is in 
place 

Submission of 
the Local Plan 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
20/12/17; no 
changes 
recommended 

C
P

1
 

Growth and 
local economy 

Growth is vital 
to the future 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Proactive 
approach to 
growth; 
economic 
development 
plan 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Implementation 
of the 
Economic 
Development 
Plan 

Aim to 
reduce the 
likelihood of 
lack of 
growth to 
possible due 
to ED Plan 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
6/12/17; no 
changes 
recommended 

P
age 11



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Local Plan 

Lack of 
delivery on 
the Local Plan 
will have an 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Local Plan 
delivery plan; 
plans for a local 
plan board to 
oversee actions 
post-adoption 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on 
delivering the 
Local Plan on 
schedule 

Adoption of the 
Local Plan 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
27/6/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

C
P

2
 

Housing 

Lack of 
housing 
delivery, 
across 
tenures that 
means that 
the range of 
housing 
needs that 
exist within 
the Borough 
cannot be 
met. 
 
A lack of 
delivery will 
have 
overarching 
negative 
impacts that 
affect the 
economy, 
business 
confidence 
and the ability 

AF 

Development of 
a new Local 
Plan. 
Delivery of 
Housing 
Strategy 
Actions. 
Developing 
Transformation 
Programme to 
focus on wider 
housing 
enabling and 
housing 
delivery. 
 

4 
Almost 
certain 

3 
Major 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
drive the 
delivery of new 
Housing  

Submission of 
local plan.  
Monitoring of 
total housing 
delivery.  
Monitoring of 
affordable 
housing 
delivery. 

N/A 

Red; 
Reviewed and 
updated by 
CMT on 
24/1/18; 
increased from 
medium to 
high risk 

P
age 12



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

of the Council 
to achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people and 
meet the 
wider housing 
needs of the 
community;  

C
P

2
 

Welfare 

There is a risk 
that ‘universal 
support – 
delivered 
locally’ will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people 

PJ 

'Universal 
support - 
delivered 
locally' project 
work underway 
with partners to 
ensure support 
and training is 
in place for 
staff and local 
people 

2 
Possible 

2 
Minor 
impact 

4 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on the 
'universal 
support - 
delivered 
locally' project 
with partners 

Monitor impact 
of universal 
credit 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
16/5/18 – no 
changes at 
this time – to 
be reviewed 
again post 
Universal 
Credit roll out 
in September 
2018 

P
age 13



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

2
 

Health 

There is a risk 
that health 
issues will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
people; long 
term health 
issues, 
deprivation, 
local 
perceptions, 
apathy, 
unsustainable 
health 
services 

PP 
Partnership 
working with 
health 

3 
Probable 

2 
Minor 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
deliver the 
Boston Health 
& Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Partnership 
work on the 
Boston Health 
& Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
18/4/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

C
P

3
 

Town centre 

The future 
sustainability 
of the town 
centre in 
terms of retail, 
housing and 
car parking 
will have an 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
prosperity and 
place priority 

PP 

Prosperous 
Boston and 
Markets task 
and finish 
groups 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Prosperous 
Boston and 
Markets task 
and finish 
groups 

Aim to 
reduce the 
likelihood of 
the town 
centre 
deteriorating 
to possible 
and to take 
all available 
opportunities 
to reshape a 
vibrant town 
centre 

Green; 
Reviewed and 
updated by 
CMT on 
10/1/18; risk 
score reduced 
from 9 to 6 – 
still medium 

P
age 14



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Population 
change 

There is a risk 
that 
population 
change will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priorities of 
people & 
prosperity 

AF 

Inclusive 
Boston 
projects; 
Controlling 
Migration Fund 

3 Probable 
3 

Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
 Treat 

 Inclusive 
Boston 
projects – 
progress 
monitored in 
quarterly 
reporting 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 2/5/18 
and 13/6/18; 
wording 
changed and 
likelihood 
increased to 3 

C
P

4
 

Budget 

There is a risk 
around the 
long term 
balancing of 
the budget 
with economic 
and funding 
uncertainty 
impacting on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of 
reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring; 
refresh of 
transformation 
programme; 
maintenance of 
the value list 

3 
Probable 

4 
Critical 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have a robust 
budget setting 
and MTFP 
process in 
place; 
continue to 
drive the 
delivery of the 
refreshed 
transformation 
programme; 
be less risk 
averse when 
making 
decisions 
about 
transformation 

Delivery of 
MTFP; 
quarterly 
reporting; 
implementation 
of the 
transformation 
programme 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
18/10/17; no 
changes 
recommended; 
specific 
wording added 
in relation to 
Internal 
Drainage 
Board (IDB) 
risk in Q4 

P
age 15



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Capacity 

There is a risk 
that capacity 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

KN 

Recruitment 
and retention 
project 
completed; 
succession 
planning 
ongoing; HR 
policies and 
procedures; 
good 
management 
practice; 
member 
training and 
development; 
there is 
capacity in 
priority areas 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
train and 
develop staff 
and members 
and maximise 
resources by 
prioritising and 
shared 
services 

Workforce 
planning; 
succession 
planning 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
01/11/17 – no 
changes 
recommended 

C
P

4
 

Transformation 
Programme 

There is a risk 
that the next 
phase of the 
transformation 
programme 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
deliver public 
service 

PJ 

Transformation 
Programme; 
project 
management 
methodology; 
governance in 
place via 
Transformation 
Board and 
quarterly 
reporting 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
drive the 
delivery of the 
transformation 
programme 

Delivery of the 
transformation 
programme; 
review of the 
project 
management 
guidelines 

N/A 

Amber; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
11/07/18 – 
likelihood 
score 
increased to 3 

P
age 16



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Brexit 

The outcome 
of the 
referendum 
has resulted 
in economic 
uncertainty 
and there may 
be other 
changes 
around 
migration, the 
local 
workforce, 
and the legal 
framework in 
which we 
operate that 
are also 
uncertain at 
this time 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of 
reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have robust 
financial plans 
and monitoring 
in place 
pending more 
clarity 

Quarterly 
financial 
reporting 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
15/11/17 – no 
changes 
recommended 

O
v
e
ra

ll Civil 
contingency 
risks 

There are 
community 
risks which 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
operate 
effectively 

AF 

Community 
Risk Register 
monitored by 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum (LRF) 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with the 
LRF 

Working in 
partnership 
with the 
Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
7/02/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

P
age 17



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
v
e
ra

ll 

Compliance 

There is a risk 
that non-
compliance 
with legal 
requirements / 
governance / 
internal 
controls will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

MS 

Internal 
controls, 
policies and 
procedures in 
place; annual 
governance 
statement; 
internal audit; 
safeguarding 
policy and 
procedures; 
ongoing work 
to improve 
contract 
management 
and to update 
the contract 
register; 
Member 
training 
programme 
and corporate 
training 
programme in 
place; revised 
scheme of 
delegation; 
effective 
complaints 
management 
process 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
ensure 
compliance 
with legal 
requirements, 
governance 
and internal 
controls; 
improve 
contract 
register 

Internal audit 
reporting; 
review of 
contract 
register; 
Member Code 
of Conduct to 
be finalised 
and adopted; 
procurement 
training 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
30/05/18 – 
changes to 
wording only 

P
age 18



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k
 o

w
n

e
r 

Existing 
control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; 
Treat 

Action/s 
(monitored in 
P+) 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
v
e
ra

ll 

Reputation 

There is a 
reputational 
risk to the 
Council which 
could impact 
on the ability 
of the Council 
to operate 
effectively 

KN 

Internal and 
external 
communication, 
press releases, 
bulletins, 
website, social 
media; policy, 
protocol and 
training for 
speaking to the 
press 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
communicate 
effectively and 
work with the 
press to 
portray the 
Council 
accurately 

Production of 
press releases, 
bulletins; use 
of social 
media; 
development of 
Visit Boston, 
Think Boston 
etc; work with 
the Youth 
Council 

N/A 

Green; 
Reviewed by 
CMT on 
21/02/2018 – 
changes to 
wording only 

 
Environmental enforcement risk reviewed by CMT on 7/3/18 and removed as a strategic risk. The contract has been in place for over a year so we now have data to 
inform the risk score and it has been agreed to downgrade it to an operational risk rather than a strategic risk. 
 

Guidance on scoring for information 
 
Risk appetite categories: 
 

 
 

P
age 19



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 

P
age 20



 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 17 SEPTEMBER 2018  

SUBJECT: PROPERTY FUND UPDATE 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT: NO 

 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
Following the approval of the 2018/19 Capital and Treasury Strategy by Council on 
30 April, the Quarter 1 Treasury Management update to this Committee on 23 July, 
and the Quarter 1 performance monitoring report to Cabinet on 5 September, this 
report updates members on progress with securing Property Fund holdings. 
 
At the time of preparing this report, around a third of the £20m has been placed, with 
the remainder expected to be spent by the end of this calendar year. Appropriate 
borrowing will be undertaken to finance the spending. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee notes the progress to date, and that future updates on securing 
further holdings, borrowing and fund performance will be presented as part of the 
regular treasury management/performance reporting processes. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
In line with the Committee’s request to receive an update on progress to secure 
Property Fund holdings. 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 3



 

REPORT:  
 
INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1  As part of the review of its Capital and Treasury Strategy, the Council 

approved the capital purchase of Property Fund holdings to the sum of £20m 
this year, to support the Council’s longer term capital requirements. 
 

1.2  The regular quarterly treasury management monitoring report to this 
Committee in July updated members on the progress made up to that time, at 
which point members requested that a further update report be presented to 
this meeting. 
 

1.3 As reported in the first quarter’s performance monitoring report, fund 
managers made presentations in early July, setting out details of their funds, 
recent performance, and their expectations for returns in the future. 
 

2 POSITION TO DATE 
 

2.1 Working with the Council’s Treasury advisors, Link Asset Services, officers 
undertook a process of due diligence and received presentations from the five 
selected managers in early July. 
 

2.2 Whilst there were some slight differences in the make-up of the funds (sector, 
geography, average lease tenure), it was concluded that, as the intention is for 
longer term holdings, in line with the Capital and Treasury Strategy risks would 
be best mitigated by placing roughly equal amounts in each of the five funds. 
With transactions only taking place when willing buyers and sellers can be 
matched, it will take a few months for the full sum to be placed.   
 

2.3 At the end of August dealing date, funds were placed with Schroder’s (£4m) 
and Threadneedle (£3m), with a trade with Blackrock (£4m) due during 
September. Trades with M & G and AEW are expected shortly. Costs and fees 
associated with the purchases will form part of the purchase price, and be 
funded from borrowing (either externally or internally).  
 

2.4 For the August trades, £5m was financed from existing internal resources 
together with temporary borrowing from South Holland DC of £2m, which was 
arranged on 6 September 2018 for 1 month at a rate of 1%. This was done 
after close liaison and dialogue with advisors on the expected movements for 
long term rates in the coming months, with the intention to borrow longer term 
when rates are most favourable. Future purchases are expected to be 
financed from PWLB long-term loans. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

3 FURTHER WORK, AND FUTURE UPDATES 
 

3.1 It is anticipated that the remaining sums will be spent by the end of the 
calendar year, although this is dependent on the availability of holdings from 
the outstanding funds, in line with the equal spending between the funds as 
agreed following presentations from the fund managers, to ensure a spread of 
funds so that risks can be best mitigated.   
 

3.2 Holdings will be placed with the remaining funds, Blackrock, M & G and AEW, 
and topping up of the holdings in Threadneedle, by the end of the calendar 
year, as they become available. 
 

3.3 As set out in paragraph 2.4, temporary borrowing of £2m has been taken out 
to date, with the remaining sums coming from working capital cash. During the 
purchase of the rest of the holdings, close attention will be paid to the 
appropriate time and amount of further borrowing, and future update reports 
will set out the position. 
 

3.4 Future updates will be incorporated into the regular quarterly reports to this 
Committee and Cabinet, as well as annually via the refresh of the Capital and 
Treasury Strategy. 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None as a result of this update report. Future performance monitoring reports will set 
out the financial consequences of the placing of funds. 
 

 

 
LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The General Power of Competence (GPOC) in the Localism Act 2011.  
There is a general power to borrow under the Local Government Act 2003, Section 1.  
The power to spend for capital purposes is included in the Local Government Act 
2003. 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
None 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

CONSULTATION 
 
None at this stage.  
 
The 2018/19 Capital and Treasury Strategy report to Council on 30 April, and its 
appendices, can be found at –  
 
http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1165&Ver=4  
 
The Quarter 1 2018/19 Treasury Management report presented to this Committee on 
23 July can be found at -  
 
http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s5070/Treasury%20Management%20Up
date%20-%20Quarter%201%202018-19.pdf  
 
The Quarter 1 2018/19 Performance report presented to the Cabinet on 5 September 
can be found at -  
 
http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s5070/Treasury%20Management%20Up
date%20-%20Quarter%201%202018-19.pdf  

Page 24

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1165&Ver=4
http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s5070/Treasury%20Management%20Update%20-%20Quarter%201%202018-19.pdf
http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s5070/Treasury%20Management%20Update%20-%20Quarter%201%202018-19.pdf
http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s5070/Treasury%20Management%20Update%20-%20Quarter%201%202018-19.pdf
http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s5070/Treasury%20Management%20Update%20-%20Quarter%201%202018-19.pdf


 

 

  
For all your assurance needs 

 

 
Boston Borough Council   
 
Progress Report – September 2018   
 
                      
 

 

                                                               

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



 
Contents            Para  

 
 

Introduction          1    
 

Key Messages                   1 
 

Internal Audit work completed July – August    1 
 

Other Significant Work        2 
 

Audits in Progress         2 
 

Audit Recommendations        2  
 

Performance Information        3 
 

Other matters of interest        4 
 

Appendices 
Appendix 1  – Details of Limited or Low Assurance Reports    5 
Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Plan & Schedule 2018/19   6 
Appendix 3  – Assurance Definitions      8  
Appendix 4  – Performance Details      9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact Details: 
John Scott 
Audit Manager 

 

 
For all your assurance needs 
City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln, LN1 1DD  
:  01522 873321    john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Page 26

mailto:john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk


 
Introduction   
 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to: 
 

 Advise of progress made with the Audit Plan  

 Provide details of the audit work undertaken since the last progress report.   

 Provide details of the current position with agreed management actions in 
respect of previously issued reports  

 Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit & Governance 
Committee role  

 

 
Key Messages   
 
 

2. The 2018/19 audit plan is progressing well and is on track. At the end of August 30% of 
the Plan has been completed; two audits have been completed, three are in progress 
and others are being prepared. 

 

  
Internal Audit work completed July – August 2018   
 
 

3. No final reports have been issued since the last progress report;  
 

High Assurance Substantial 
Assurance 

Limited 
Assurance 

Low 
Assurance 
 

Consultancy 

None None None None  

 
Note: The Audit & Governance Committee should note that the assurance expressed is 
at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of the agreed 
management action plan. Definitions levels are shown in Appendix 4.   
 

 

  

Page 27



Other Significant Work  
 

 
4. Car Parking 

 
This work is a combination of a review of the income controls and an assessment of 
possible value for money opportunities. It was requested by management due to falling 
car park revenue over the last three years. 
 
Good progress is being made and it is hoped that a report will be with management by 
mid-September. 
 

 

Audits in Progress  
 

 
5. The following audits are in progress; 

 

 Environmental Enforcement – fieldwork in progress 

 Key Controls (Housing Benefits, Council Tax & NNDR) – fieldwork in progress 
 
 

Audit Recommendations  
 

 
6. There is a formal process for tracking Internal Audit recommendations; they are 

recorded on the Council’s performance management system, Performance Plus, and 
progress updates are input by management each quarter. We periodically liaise with the 
Transformation & Governance Manager to obtain status reports. 
 
Internal Audit undertake formal follow up on all High priority recommendations and all 
recommendations made in audits where the overall assurance is Limited or Low; 
evidence of implementation will be requested and examined. 
 
 
High priority recommendations 
 
During 2017/18 high priority recommendations were made and agreed in the following 
audits; 
 

 ICT Malware (October 2017). Two made and both are recorded as Complete.  

 IT Infrastructure (October 2017). Two made and both are recorded as Complete.  
 
These IT recommendations will be reviewed as part of this year’s IT Infrastructure audit. 

 

 Information Management (December 2017). One made and is recorded as 
Complete.  

 Creditors (January 2018). Two made and both are recorded as Complete.  

 Bank (January 2018). One made and is recorded as Complete.  
 

Page 28



Our follow up work has found that the four recommendations above have all been 
implemented as agreed. 

 
No high priority recommendations have been made so far in 2018/19.  
 

  
 Medium priority recommendations 
  

As at 30th June 2018 the following Medium priority recommendations have been 
extended; 

 

 Information Management (December 17) 
o Issue System Administrator guidance to applications owners / 

administrators 
The original target date of November 2017 has been further extended from 
March 2018 to November 2018 to tie in to the case management project. The 
system administrator guidance has been drafted but as part of that drafting 
process and the project work, additional changes have been identified. It has 
been agreed that a top down management implementation is a more measured 
approach. Therefore, the release of the guidance will be delayed to reflect this 
and this will be rolled out as part of the case management project. 
 

 Transformation Programme (August 2017) 
o Implement a monitoring process to ensure that projects comply with the 

new governance processes (milestone setting & progress reporting, risk 
management, achievement of aims) 

The original target date of March 2018 has been extended to September 2018. 
The new process and documentation has been in place for six months as agreed 
and is working well as part of the pilot. However, we have only had a small 
number of projects in the time period so it has been agreed to extend the pilot for 
another 6 months to ensure that all learning can be captured before signing the 
changes off as permanent. 
 

 
In the period since the last update 15 Medium priority recommendations have been 
completed, and a further 5 are Not Yet Due. 
 

 
Performance Information  
 
 
7. Our performance is measured against a range of indicators, and is shown at Appendix 4.  
 
 

  

Page 29



Other matters of interest 
 
 
8. Lincolnshire Audit Committee Forum  
 

The Lincolnshire Audit Committee Forum is a networking group which enables the 
sharing of good practice, emerging governance and risk issues and hot topics for public 
sector audit committees.  It is designed to help and support the effectiveness of audit 
committees. 

 
This is good opportunity to meet up with members of audit committees countywide and 
we plan to host an all-day forum event on 16th October 2018.  This forum day is open to 
all members of public sector Audit Committees. 

  

Page 30



Appendix 1 – Details of Low or Limited Assurance Reports  
 
 
There are none. 
 

  

Page 31



 
  

Appendix 2 – 2018/19 Audit Plan Schedule 
 
Area  
 

Indicative Scope Planned 
Start 
Date 

Actual 
Start  
Date 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Current 
Status / 
Assurance 
Opinion 

Annual Report Production of 2017/18 
Annual Report 

Q1 April 18 May 18 Complete 
A&G May 18 

Elections & Electoral 
Registration 

Maintaining the electoral 
register and the 
operation of elections. 

Q1 April 18 June 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Payroll  Key controls Q1 May 18 July 18 Completed – 
High 
assurance 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Operation of the 
partnerships. 

Q2 Aug 18  In progress 

Boston Town Area 
Committee 

Governance and 
operational 
arrangements. 

   Moved to 
2019/20 

Car Parking (NEW) Income controls and 
VFM opportunities 

Q2 Jul 18  In progress 

Business Continuity & 
Emergency Planning 

The Council’s resilience 
plans in the event of loss 
of key buildings and / or 
ICT. 

Q3   Being 
prepared 

Housing Growth & 
Affordable Housing 

Work to increase the 
supply and range of 
affordable and flexible 
housing products. 

Q2-3   Being 
prepared 

Council Tax  Key controls Q2-3 Sept 18 
 

 In progress 

Housing Benefit  Key controls Q2-3 

NNDR  Key controls Q2-3 

Town Centre Work being done to 
revitalise the town 
centre. 

Q2-3    

Migration Fund  Processes to deliver and 
record key output 
measures. 

Q3    

ICT  Infrastructure & DR 
follow up 

Q3    

Combined Assurance Production of 2018/19 
Assurance Map & report 

Q3-4    

Ethical Culture Assessment of the 
Council’s (officer) ethical 
framework 

Q4    

ICT  Digitalisation strategy & 
use of new websites 

Q4    

Page 32



Area  
 

Indicative Scope Planned 
Start 
Date 

Actual 
Start  
Date 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Current 
Status / 
Assurance 
Opinion 

Economic 
Development 

Work being done to 
grow the economy. 

Q4    

Governance-Risk-
Fraud 

High level assessment 
for the annual audit 
opinion 

Q4    

IA Strategy & new 
Audit Plan 

Production of 2019/20 
audit plan 

Q4    

Page 33



Appendix 3 - Assurance Definitions
1
 

 
High Assurance 
 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and the 
operation of controls and / or performance.   
 
The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  Controls 
have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are operating effectively. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Substantial 
Assurance 
 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a substantial level of 
confidence (assurance) on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance. 
 
There are some improvements needed in the application of controls to manage 
risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and 
operating sufficiently so that the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
medium to low.   
 
 
 
  

 
Limited Assurance  
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation 
of controls and / or performance. 
 
The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be operating or are 
inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are unlikely to give a reasonable 
level of confidence (assurance) that the risks are being managed effectively.  It is 
unlikely that the activity will achieve its objectives. 
 

Low Assurance 
 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant concerns on 
service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls 
and / or performance. 
 
There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key risks or the 
controls have been evaluated as not adequate, appropriate or are not being 
effectively operated. Therefore the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
high. 
 

 
 
 
 

                                                 
1
 These definitions are used as a means of measuring or judging the results and impact of matters identified in the 

audit. The assurance opinion is based on information and evidence which came to our attention during the audit.  
Our work cannot provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist.  

Page 34



Appendix 4 - Performance Details 2018/19 Planned Work 

 

 
 

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target 

Profiled 
Target 

Actual  
 

Percentage of plan 
completed. 

100%  
 

16% end June 
47% end Sept 
82% end Dec 
100% end Mar 
 

30% at end of August 

Percentage of key financial 
systems completed. 
 

100%  100% 0%  
(none programmed for Q1) 
 

Percentage of 
recommendations agreed. 
 

100%  100% 100%  
(2 out of 2) 

Percentage of 
recommendations due 
implemented. 
 

100% or 
escalated  
 

100% or 
escalated  
 

0%  
(none yet due) 
 

Timescales: 
Draft report issued within 10 
working days of completing 
audit.  
 
Final report issued within 5 
working days of closure 
meeting / receipt of 
management responses. 
 
Period taken to complete 
audit –within 2 months from 
fieldwork commencing to the 
issue of the draft report. 
 

  
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
80% 

 
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
80% 

 
100%  
(2 out of 2) 
 
 
100%  
(2 out of 2) 
 
 
 
100%  
(2 out of 2) 
 

Client Feedback on Audit 
(average) 
 

Good to 
excellent 

Good to 
excellent 

Good to excellent  
(2 issued & returned) 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018-19 
 

MEETING  
 

ITEMS 

30 MAY 2018  Annual Audit Fee – External Auditor 

 Annual Fraud Performance Report 2017/18 – Kelly Clarke 

 Quarter 4 2017/18 Risk Report  – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Pre-Audit Financial Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18 – John Scott  

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 
 

23 JULY 2018  Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) 2017/18 –           
John Cornett, KPMG 

 Financial Report 2017/18 – Paul Julian  

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 1 2018/19 – Paul Julian 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 
 

17 SEPT 2018  Introduction to representatives from Mazars 

 Quarter 1 Risk Report  – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Property Fund Update – Colin Wyatt 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 
 

12 NOV 2018  Annual Audit Letter 2018/19  – External Auditor 

 Quarter 2 Risk Report – Suzanne Rolfe  

 Treasury Management – 2018/19 Mid-Year Update – Paul Julian  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 
 

28 JAN 2019  Certification of Grants and Returns – Annual Report 2017/18 –  
John Cornett, KPMG 

 Technical Update, Incorporating the External Audit Progress Report – 
Mazars 

 Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2019/20 – 2023/24 – Paul Julian  

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 3 2018/19 – Paul Julian  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 – John Scott 
 

25 MAR 2019  External Audit Plan 2018/19 – Mazars 

 Quarter 3 Risk Report 2018/19 – Suzanne Rolfe 

 Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 – Paul Julian 

 Accounting Policies – Paul Julian 

 Combined Assurance – Status Report – John Scott 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 – John Scott 

 Internal Audit Plan  2019/20 – John Scott 
 

 
 

 

 
 

To be scheduled: CIPFA Guidance to Audit Committees – John Scott 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	2 QUARTER 1 RISK REPORT
	Appendix A - Detail of Strategic Risks

	3 PROPERTY FUND UPDATE
	4 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	5 WORK PROGRAMME

